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1]I111:キ!ill
CPAS and Advisors

Independent Auditor's Report

The Honorable Mayor and
Board of Commissioners
Town of Beaufort, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial s-taternents of the governmental activiues, the
business-type activitis, and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended lune 30, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

llanagemen(s R$pt6lbiltty for ,,,e Financial Sbtu renb
Managem€nt is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance tyith accounting principles generally accepted in the Unlted States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the p,eparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's R6NtEIbiIiU
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that rve plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statemenb are free of material miastatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor,s
iudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fr6trd 6r eftor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the enuty's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eifectiveness of the
entity's intern?l control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation of the financial statetnents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apDropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opi,rions
In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the respedive financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Beaufort, North Carolina, as of .lune 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position. and cash flows, u,here appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetarY comparison
for the General Fund and the Fire District Fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles oenerally accepted in the United states of America'

Other Matters

R eq u i red S u pplene n ta ry I n fo rma tion
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
llanagement's Discussion and Analysis, the Law Enforcement Officer's Special Separation
Allowance's and the Other Postemployment Benefit Schedules of Funding Progress and
Schedules of Employer Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements, Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operationat, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
managementb responses to our inqu,ries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do not express an opir'trot1
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other In formation
Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively Comprise the basic financial statements of the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina.
The individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedutes, and Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as required by tJ.S. Office of Management and
Budqet Circular A-131, Audits of State and Local Governments and ilon-protit Organizations
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and i/iere
deraved from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subiected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, inaluding comparing and reconciling such information direcfly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us. tn our opinion, based on
our report, the procedures performed as described above, the individual fund statements,
budgetary schedules, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, and other
Schedules are fairly Stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financiat statements
as a whole.



(Xher Reporting Required by Government Aaditing Standards
In accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 8, 2013, on our consideration of the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of the
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of
Beaufort'S internal COntrol over financial reporting and compliance.

Crn nW i J,1^^r, t.L.e

New Bern, North Carolina
November 8, 2013



TOWN OF BEAUFORT
701 Front Street, P.O. Box 390

Beaufort, N.C. 28516
(2s2) 72g-2t4r, (252) 728-3982 fax

www.beaufortnc.org

I.IAt{AG Eii| EI{T,S DISCUSSIO AiID AIIALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

As management of the Town of Beaufort, we offer readers of the Town of Beaufort's financial statements

this narrative overview and analysis of the financial adivities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2013. We encourage rcaders to use the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in the Town's financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

. The assets of the Town of Beaufort erceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the
close of the fiscal year by $23,799,324 (oet position). This amolnt was comprised of net position in
the governmental funds of $5,216,749 and $18,582,575 in business-type funds.

. The government's total net position increased by $&2,610, which consisted of an increase of
governmental funds of $483,974, and an increase in business-type funds of $158,636.

. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Beaufort's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $2,7L2,104, an increase of 9215,289 over the prior year.
Approximately 45.7olo of this total amount, or $1,238,332, is available for spending at the
government's discretion.

. Long-term debt in the governmental funds increased by a net amount of 9170,415 due to the addition
of a loan for a new pumper truck for 9359,858 and principal reductions in the amount of g199,443.
Long-term debt in the enterprise funds decreased by a net amount of $136,718 due primarily to a
combination of additional loans of 91,000,433 for water infrastructure projects and principal payments
0f $1,137,151.

Overview of the Fanancial Statements

ThiS diSCuSSiOn and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Beaufort,s basic
financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financiat statements, and 3) notes to the financial st;taments (see
Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the Town through the us; of
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financirl statements,
this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader! understanding of the
financial condition of the Town of Beaufort.

8



Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Basic Financial Statements

The farst two statements (Exhibits l and 2) in the basic financial statements are the government-wide
financial statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town's financial
status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 thrgugh 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on
the activities of the individual parts of the Town's government. These statements provide more detail
than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial statements: 1) the
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund
statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show details about the Town's individual funds. Budgetary information
required by North Carolina General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the Town's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the Town's financial status
as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the Town's net position and how it has changed during the
year. Net position is the difference between the Town's total assets and deferred outflows of resources
and total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the
Town's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are davided into two categories; governmental activities and business-
type activities. The governmental activities include most of the Town's basic services such as public
safety. trash and recycle pickup, local streets and public property. parks and recreation, and general
administration. Property taxes, federal and state shared revenues and grants finance most oa these
activities. The business-type activities are the utility services that the Town charges customers' user fees
to provide. These include the water and sewer services provided by the Town of Beaufort.

The government-wide financial information is presented in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Figure 1
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Fund Financaal Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town's most significant activities. A

fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Beaufort, like all other governmental
entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance)
with finance-related legal requirements, such as General Statutes or the Town's budget ordinance. All of
the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Town's basic services
are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted
into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the
next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial
statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more
or less financial resources available to finance the Town's programs. The relationship between
government activities, reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, and
governmental funds is described in a reconciliati0n that is a part gf the fund financial statements.

The Town of Beaufort adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, Fire Fund, and Utility Fund, as
required by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input
from the citizens of the Town, the management of the Town, and the decisions of the Board of
Commissioners about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the Town to
obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Town complied with the budget ordinance and
whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted.
The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four
columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board;
3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the
difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for
the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation
showing the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - The Town of Beaufort has one of two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business.type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town of Beaufort uses enterprise funds to account for iti water and
sewer operations. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

I{otes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
began on paqe 25.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, thas report
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the Town of geaufortt progresi in
funding its oblioation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information
can be found beginning on page 48 of this report.

Interdependence with Othcr Entaties - The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or
associated with, both the Federal Government and the State of North Carolina. Because of this
dependency, the Town is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on
modifications to Federal and State laws and Federal and State appropriations.



Governmental
ActivitieS

2013         2012

Town of Beaufort's Net Position

Figure 2

Business-type
Activities

2013 20L2 2013         2012
Totals

Current and other assets
Restricted assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
oeferred inflolYs

of resources
Total liabilities and
deferred inflows of
resources

Net position:
Net investment in

capital assets
Restricted
unrestricted

Total net position

$  2′ 589′ 018
874′ 091
4′ 474′ 519
7937628

1′ 009′ 480
1′フ05,415

5′984

2′ 720.879

2,575′ 335
1′ 323′ 528
1317886
S  5216749

$  2′ 869′ 004
645`154
4.158146
7672304

1′ 263′ 009
1,567,270

$  2.956,882
2′ 041.271
32136199
37.134.352

1′ 717′ 518
16′ 834,259

$  2′ 739′ 661
2′ 011′ 734
32.147.693
36899088

1,451,951
17,023′ 198

$  5,545,900
2′ 915′ 362
36610718
45.071,980

2,726′ 998
18,539′ 6フ4

5984

212フ2656

16′ 694′810
1′ 323,528
5780986
S 23フ993,4

事   5′ 608′ 665
2′ 656′ 888
36305839
44571392

2,741,960
18′ 590′ 468

21305.428

16,423′ 628
1′ 634′ 818
5.207.518

生  23265964

2′8302,9    18551777

2,429′ 377    14,119,475
1′ 634′ 818             ‐

777.830     4463100
3  4842025  ■ lA SA,ヽ フヽ

18.475.149

13,994′ 251

4′ 429′ 688
3 18´ 423939

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial
condition. The assets of the Town of Beaufort exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $23,799,324
as of June 30, 2013. The Town's net position increased by $642,610 for the fiscal year ended lune 30,
2013.

However, the largest portion 700lo or $16,694,810, reflects the Town's net investment in capital assets
(e.9. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The Town of Beaufort uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the Town's net investment in capital assets as reported net of the outstanding retated debt, t-he
resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Of the Town of Beaufortt net position at lune 30, 2013, $1,323,528, or 5.5o/o, represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The unrestricted balance at year end was
$5,780,986.



Town of Beaufort's Changes in l{et Position

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants
Capital grants

General revenues
Property taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
6eneral government
Public safety
TransPortation
Environmental Protection
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water and sewer

Total expenses

Increase in net position
before transfers

Transfers

Change in net position

Governmental
Activities   _

2013         2012

$     392,890  $    384′ 714

135′ 971        308′074
311′ 748         28,632

2,705,957      2,373′ 095
918,110        850,427
662.251        731.340
5 126927      4.676.282

1,174,201
2,318,209
748′ 858
328′ 897
39′ 265

48′フ49

1′090,569
2,456,482
1,054′ 328
386′ 333
32,610

2フ′386

483′974 (

109,250)

433,848)

Figure 3

8usiness― type

Activities

2013         2012

$   2,987′ 3ア 1  1   2,995,757

-        709′ 524

111.514        128.370
3099.385      3.833′ 651

2.925′ 523      2.911.198

Tgtals
2013         2012

$   3′ 380,761  $   3′ 380′ 471

135,971        308′ 074

311,748        フ38′ 156

2,705,957      2′ 373,095
918,110        350′ 427
フア3′ 765        859710
8226.312      8.509′ 933

1,090′ 569
2,456,482
1,054′ 328
386′ 333
32′610
27′586

2925523      2911 198
7583.702      7′ 959′ 106

642,610        550′827

158,636        984′ 675        642,610        550,827

-              ‐ (     109′250)             ‐

1,174′ 201
2,318,209
748,858
328′ 897
39′ 265

46′ 749

4′ 658.179      504フ 908      2925.523      2911 198

468′ 748 (     371′ 626)       173′ 862 922′ 453

15.226 (       62.222) (      15.226)       62222

Prior period adjustment (

Net polition, luly I 4_342_025      5,2751873     18,423.939  

…

     23.265964     22715,137

Net position, June 30 L=:=5J19J49 r - 4-8t12-025 S t8-582175 Ll!J23€!9 $ ]3;199..34 L-2L26,L964

Governmental actiyities. Governmental activities resulted in an increase of the Town's net position
by 9483,974, a combined result of decreased spending levels, decreased staffing levels, improved tax
Collection rates, and the receipt of $264,461 in funds from Carteret County for the construction of a fire
substation. Town management continues to monitor spending in an effort to keep increases modest.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the Town's net position by $158,636. The
gain is modest as compared to the prior year as there were no funds from capital grants received this
year.

Financial Analysas of the Town's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Beaufort uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Goyernmental Funds. The focus of the Town of Beaufort's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Beaufort. At the end of the current fiscal
year, total fund balance of the General Fund was $2,501,f37, of which $1.540,898 was unassigned and
available for use by the Board of Commissioners. This unreserved amount represents 40.80/0 of total
General Fund expenditures for the year.

1つ



General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget several
times. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: l) amendments made to adjust
the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available:
2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and
State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Proprietary Funds. The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Utility Fund at the end
of the fiscal year amounted to $4,463,100.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets, The Town of Beaufort's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 20f3, totaled $36.610,718 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets
include land, buildings, roads and sidewalks, machinery and equipment. park facilities, vehicles, water
and sewer operating facilities, and related infrastructure. More information about the Town's capital
assets is provided in Note 1 and Note 3.

Town of Eeaufort's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental
Activities

Figure 4

Business-type
Activities Totals

2013          2012          2013          2012          2013          2012

Land                   $  1,461,005  $  1,461,005  事  1,063′ 615  事  1′ 063.615  3  2,524,620  9  2′ 524′ 620
Construction in progress        206′ 144       223′ 573       769,495       880,844       975,639     1′ 104,417
Equipment                   156′ 860       183′ 116       134′ 108       196,225       290,968       379,341
vehicles                     762′ 390       563′800        62′ 309        79,868       824,699       643,668
8uildings&improvements      977.019     1,008′ 057       230′ 740       259,234     1′ 20フ′759     1′ 267,291
1nFrastructure                 911.lo1       718 595    29 875.932    29667907    30787033    30386502
Total assets         菫=_=彗」2JL[12  3_…    `1'11619。   生 32147693  3 36610718  ( ■6■ ns A■0

Long‐term Debt. Fo‖ owing is a summary of outstanding long― term obligations as of]une 30′ 2013 for
the Town of Beaufort. Ceneral obligation bonds are debt backed by the Fu‖ faith and credit of the Town.
More information about long― term debtis presented in Note l and Note 3.

Town of Beaufort's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental
Activities

2013         2012

3  1899184  S  1728769

Figure 5

Business― type
Activities

2013          2012

3 18016フ 24  S 18153442

Tota ls
2013          2012

3 19915_908  ● 19 AR,,11Installment loans

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8o/o of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries.
The legal debt margin for the Town of Beaufort is 9a3,263,110.



Economic Factors and llext Year's Budgets and Rates

Fiscal year 2013 saw modest but real growth in several key revenue lines indicative of localized economic
recoveiy. Consumer spending levels appear to be returning to pre-recession levels as evidenced, in

particular, by the increase in sales and use tax. Property tax collection rates improved, with several key
bankruptcy settlements accounting for the larger than expected increase over FY 2012. Moving forward
into FY 2014, the Town is encouraged by the signs of economic improvement, albeit at a relatively slow
pace.

While the Town is cautiously optimistic about revenue growth, revenue projections for FY14 remained
conservative. A property tax collection rate of 96.90/o was utilized in accordance with the General

Statutes. Other State funding sources were projected to increase slightly over FY13, consistent with the
projections provided by the North Carolina League of Municipalities. General fund reserves were not
included as a means to balance the FYl4 budget, nor was there any increase in service delivery fees. or
in the existinO .30 per $100 tax rate.

In preparing the FYl4 budget for the General Fund. the Town continued to focus on improving the
efficiency of service delivery. Staffing levels were reduced in FY14, particularly in Public Works and Public

Safety, with the expressed idea that by leveraging training programs and technology, service delivery
would continue or improve, while costs were kept significantly lower than prior years. A 2olo cost of living

mid-year salary adjustment is included in the FY 2014 budget, and at the time of writing, management is

considering miking setect salary adjustments to bring certain positions in line with industry norms.

With respect to the Utility Fund, the Town continues to face fiscal challenges. While the Town is hopeful
that the recent signs of economic recovery will spawn new development bringing new water/sewer users

online, revenue projections for FYl4 are only slightly above FYl3 levels. Because the growth in number
of households used to formulate existing water and sewer rates has yet to materialize, the solvenry of
the Utility Fund is difficult to maintain with the current rates in place. While no increase was included in
the FY14 budget, the Town continues to monitor the fund closely and, at the time of this writing, is

contemplating a mid-year rate increase, or an allocation of reserve funds, due to several unanticipated
maintenance costs.

In looking ahead to future budgets, the Town remains concerned particularly about State funding sources
as the legislature continues to review and adjust its tax policies. While the last legislative session yielded
nothing to significantly impact Town revenue in FY14, there are several pending pieces of legislation with
broad reaching implications moving forward. The Town continues to evaluate potential impacts in order to
identify strateEies to mitigate any reductions in funding. Clearly, the state of the national and global

economy remains a concern.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town of Beaufort finances for those with an interest
in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the Town Finance Officer, P.O. Box 390, Beaufort, NC 285f6, (252)
728-214t.
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Town of Beaufort′ North Caroiina

STATEME‖T OF NET POSrrloN
]une 30′ 2013

Exhibit l

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable
Restrlcted cash and investments

Total current assets

Capital assets
Construction in progress
Land
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities
Cash overdraft
Customer deposits
Accrued vacation payable
Current portion of long-term liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilaties:
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RE50URCES

Prepald taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSIT10N

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted fori

Stabili2atiOn by State Statue

Streets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental
Activities

s     l′ 700′774
140′ 815
747′429
874.091
3.463.109

206′ 144
1,461,005
2.807.370
4.474.519

3     7.937.628

Business―type
Activities

$    2′ 366′ 518

590′364
2.041.271
4.998´ 153

769′495
1′063′615
30.303.089
32′ 136.199

S   37_134_352

Total

S    4′067,292
140′815
1,337′ 793
2′915.362
8.461′262

975′639
2′ 524′620
33.110.459
36.610.718

S   45071_980

事      301,640
302′566

177′ 543
227.731
1.009.480

1.705.415

2.714.895

$      349′615

149′581
27′446
1.190.876
1.717.518

16.834′ 259

18.551.777

 ヽ    651,505
302′ 566
149′331
204′989
1.418.607
2.726.998

18.539.674

21.266.672

5.984
5,984

2′575,335

747′429
576′099
1.317.886

S     S.216.749

14′ 119′ 475

4.463.100

3   18_582_Sフ S

5,984
5′984

16′694′810

747′429
576,099
5.780.986

3   23799_324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
1a



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

STATEMEN■ OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended」 une 30′ 2013

Prooram Revenues

Charges for Operating Capital
@ Exoenses Services Grants Grants

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Environmental protection
Cultural and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Utility Fund

Total business-type activities

Tota I primary government

1′ 174′ 201
2′ 318′209
748′858
328′897
39′265

$             
‐

89′753

303,137

$            
‐   5

14′ 279
120′762
930

264′461

47,287

48′ 749

4.658′ 179        392′890 135.971         311′ 748

2.925.523       2.987.871

2.925.523 

…$----7-581702 $----3-380J6r $_____l3sjzt $__lt-L7:18

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Other taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earn ings
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues not including transfers
Book value of assets transferred
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position, beginning, previously reported
Restatement of fixed assets
Net position, beginning, restated
Net position, ending



Exhibit 2

Governmental    Business― type
Activities       Activities         Total

62′ 348          62.348

62′348          62.348

(  3′817.570)   62,348( 3,755,222)

(事   1,174′ 201)

(    1′ 949′ 716)

(      628′ 096)
22′457

(      39′265)

(      48,749)

(    3.817.570)

7,996
103.518
111.514

(      15.226)
96.288
158′ 636

18′423,939

13.423.939
41  lRヽ R,ヽフR

(9   1′ 174′ 201)

(    1′ 949′ 716)

(     628,096)
22′457

(      39′ 265)

(      48.749)

(    3′ 817.570)

2,705′957
918,110
304′703
11,711
457.351
4.397.832

4.397.832
642′610

23′ 265′964
(     109.250)
23.156′714
3  23_799_324

2′705′957
918,110
304′703
3,715
353.833
4′286.318
15.226
4.301′ 544
483′974
4′ 842′025

(     109.250)
4′ 732.775

ζ   5_216749

integral part of the financial statementsThe accompanying notes are an



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

BALANCE SHEET‐ GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30′ 2013

Exhibit 3

Maior Funds
Fire Hwy 70 Fire Total

General District Utility Substation Governmental
Fund Fund Relocation Fund Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Restricted cash
Ad valorem taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities
Cash overdraft

Total liabilities

DEFERR.ED INFLOUI'S OF RESOURCES

Property taxes receivable
Prepaid revenues

FUND BALATICE:
Restricted

Stabilization by State Statue
Streets

Assigned
Public safety

Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances

$  1′ 661′ 132  $  39′ 642
576′ 099     70′ 000
140′815          -
384.140     13.436

S 2.762.186 S 123.078

$          ―

349.853
3   349.853

$        ―

227′ 992

S 22フ .992

$  1′ 700′ 774
874′ 091
140′815
747.429

S 3.463.109

$   114′ 250 $  17′ 715

114.250     17.フ 15

$          ―

302.566
302.566

$ 169′ 675  $   301′ 640
‐      302.566

169.675      604.206

Total deferred inflows of resources 746,799

140′815
5,984

384,140
576′ 099

1.540.898
2.501,137

105′ 363

105,363

349′ 853

(   302.566)
47.287

58′ 317

58,317

S 227.992

140,815
5,984
146′ 799

733′ 993
576′ 099

163′680
1.238,332
2,712″ 104

S 2.762.186  S  123.078  $    47″ 827

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capitat assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources
in fund statements.

Some liabilities, including notes payable, accrued interest and accrued
vacation are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported in the fund statements

Net positaon of governmental activities

4′ 474′ 519

140,815

(     2.110.689)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Town of BeauFort′ North Caro:ina

STATEMENT OF REVENUES′ EXPEttDrruRES′ AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

Exhibit 4

Maior Funds
Fire    HwY 70

General     District     Uti‖ ty
Fund        Fund     Relocation

Fire Total
Substation Governmental

Fund Funds

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmenta I

Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and service
Investment earnings
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Environmental protection

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTTIER FITTIANCING SOURCES (USES)

Loan proceeds
Transfer to other funds
Transfers from other funds

↑ 322′ 385  ,         ―
78′ 000            -

14′ 279    1′ 277′ 566

422
2.430
417.516 1,277.566 264,461

, 2′ 386′ 090
840′ 110
304′ 703
121′ 692
392′ 890
214′ 415
3′ 293
183.885
4.447,078

264′ 461

$ 2′ 708′ 475
918′ 110
304′ 703
1′ 677′ 998
392′ 890
214′ 415
3′ 715
186.315
6.406.621

1′ 171′ 518
1′ 326,312
774′ 710
323′ 713

126′ 886
46′ 283
3,769.422

677.656

1,280′ 320

1′ 230′ 279

62′559
2,466

1.345.345 1.230.2フ 9

(  927,829)      4フ .287

206′ 144

206.144

58.317

1′ 171′518
2,812′ 776
774′ 710
1′ 553′ 992

189′445

…
6.551.190

(    144,569)

Total other financing sources (uses) ( 584′ 000)

-     359′ 858
584′ 000)          ―

584.000
943′ 858

359′ 858
(   584′ 000)
584.000
359′ 858

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

93,656      16.029      4フ .287 58.317      215,282

2,407.481      89.334 2.496.815

3 2.501.137  S  105.363 3    4フ.287 S   58.317  S 2.712.104

integral part of the financial statements.
to

The accompanying notes are an



Town of BeauFort′ North Caroiina

STATEMENT OF REVENUES′ EXPE‖DFruRES′ AND CHANCES I‖ Fu‖D BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended]une 30,2013

Exhibit 4イcontinuedヽ

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost 0f th0se
assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current
period

Revenues in the statement 0f activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the fund statements:

Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in accrued vacation
Other post-employment benefits

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any
effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Total changes in net position of governmental activities

s    215′ 289

425′ 623

(       2′ 518)

22,012

(       6,017)

(    170.415)

S    483´ 974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Town of Beaufort′ North Ca『o‖ na
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,EXP[NDITURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES¨ BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FU‖ D AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended]une 30,2013

General Fund

REVEl{UES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and service
Investment ea rnings
Other

Total revenues

EXPEI{DTTURES
Current:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Environmental protection

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financial sources (uses):
Loan proceeds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses

Appropriated fund ba lance

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Origina:

Budcet

,   2′ 440,000
670,000
300r000
110′ 000
300,000
150′ 000

394.775
4.364.775

Final

Budoet

S   2,373′ 676
801,286
284′ 797
121′ 692
387,746
214,415
7,000
183′ 080
4.373.692

Actual

Amounts

,    2,386′ 090
840′ 110
304,703

121′ 692
392,890
214′415
3′ 293
183.885
4,447.078

Variance with

Final Budget
Positive

rNecativeヽ

s     12,414
38,824
19,906

5,144

(        3,707)
805
73.386

998′ 600
1,334,829
882,170
362,953

104,615
38.161
3.721.328

643.447

1,191′ 346
1′ 354′ 829
801,391
328′ 956

1′ 171′ 518
1,326′ 312
774′ 710
323′ 713

19,828
28,517
26′ 681
5′243

126′ 886         126′ 886              -
46.284          46.283              1
3.849.692        3.769.422          80.270

524′ 000         677.656         153.656

(      643.447)  (     726.113) (      584′ 000)        142.113

(______0生ユごヒ」D  (      726.ti3) (______ユ 菫41XID        142.113

ξ     ―

1      202,113)

202.113

1    -

93′ 656

93,656

2.407.481

く   '501 137

295,769

(      202′ 113)

1      936S6

―
    (



Exhibit 5

Fire Fund

Original

Budoet

s     322,385
70,000

1,000
5.618
399.003

Final

Budcet

s     322′ 385
70,000

14′ 279

1,000
2′430
410′ 094

Variance with

Final Budget
Actua!           Positive
Amounts       (Necative、

$     322′ 385  S           ―
78,000          8,000

14,279              -

422  ( 578)
2.430              -
417.516           7.422

62′ 560          62′ 560          62,559              1
931           2.467           2.466              1

1.042.450         984.116        1,345.345   (      361.229ヽ

(      643.447) (      574.022) (      927.829) (____ニ ユユユ[≦コD

978,959

643,447

919,089

504′ 000

(        9,978)

1,280′ 320

359′ 858
584,000

361′ 231)

359′ 858

9.978

369.836643.447         574′ 022         943.858

16′ 029 16′ 029

ζ     ― S    ―
16′ 029   S      16.029

89,334

ζ     105_363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
1t



Town of Beaufort. North Carolina
STATEMETTT OF ]IET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
lu ne 30, 2013

Exhihit 6

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Construction in progress
Land
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Tota I assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Accrued vacation
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt
Other post-employment benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

]IET POSITIOl{

Net investment In capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Maior Fund

Utility
Fund

$ 2,366,518
590,364

2.04t.271
4.998.153

769,495
1.063,615

30.303.089
32.136.199

$__l7Juls2

$ 349,615
r49,581
27,446

1.190.876
1.717.5t8

r6,825,848
8.411

16.834.259

18.551.777

14,119,475
4.463.100

$,-xL582125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
STATEMEI{T OF R.EVEI{UES, EXPEI{SES, AI|D C}|A]{GES rI{ tET POSTTTON

PROPRIETAR.Y FUT'IDS
For the Year Ended lune 30, 2013 

Exh.b.t 7

OPERATI]IG REVENUES
Charges for services
Tap fees
Connection fees

Total operating revenues

OPERATIIIG EXPEilSES
Water treatment and distribution
Waste collection and treatment
Depreciation

Tota I operating expenses

Operating income

iION.OPERATING REVENU ES (EXPENSES)
Interest earned on investments
Impact fees
Other non-operating revenues
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Book value of assets transferred
Interest on long-term debt

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Change in net Position

Total net Position, beginning

Total net Position, ending

Major Fund

Utility
Fund

$ 2,9s3,90s
14,t25
19.841

2.987.87r

s60,238
1,03r,051

900.999
2.492.288

495.583

7,996
25,650
87,335

( 9,468)
( 1s,226)
( 433.234)
( 336.947)

r 58,636

18.423.939

$_18182175

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements'
')?



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013
Exhibit 8

Cash florc from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees
Customer deposits received
Customer deposits returned

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related
finencing actavitier
Impact fees
Acquisition of capital assets
Installment notes issued
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid on bonds
Other receipts

Net cash provided (used) by
capital and financing activities

Cash flows from invsting activitie
Interest earned

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances, beginning of year

Balances, ending of year

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided by operations
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile income to

cash provided by operations:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability

Total

…
Uti‖ ty

Fund

$    2′ 716′ 628

(      714′ 917)

(       666′ 091)
19′ 600

(       16.535)
1.338.685

25′ 650

(      914′ 199)
1′ 000′ 433

(     1′ 137′ 151)

(       433′ 234)
87.335

(     1.371,166)

7.996

(        24′485)

4,432,274

3    4.407.789

$     495′ 583

900′ 999

(      271′ 243)
215′ 145

(         6′ 369)
3′ 065
1.505
843.102

3    1.338.685Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiai statements.
つ4



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
I{OTES TO THE FIilANCIAL STATEMEI{TS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

I{OTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI{T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina conform to generally accepted principles

as applicable to Eovernments. The followinO is a summary 0f the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reoortino Entity

The Town of Eeaufort is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected five member
council and mayor. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the Town only. The Town does not have a component unit.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government. These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between lhe governmental and
business-type activities of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program
or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered
by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and prcprietary - are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on maior governmental and enterprise
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated
and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such
as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary
activities such as investment earnings.



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended」 une 30′ 2013

ilOTE I SUHiIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUI{TII{G POLICIES (continued)

B. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accountino (continued)

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes
and licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance end
construction, sanitation services.

Fire District Fund - The Fire District Fund is a special revenue fund that is used to account for
specific revenue sources that are required to be accounted for in another fund (other than
expendable trust or major capital projects). The Town reports its Fire Department in the special
reyenue fund since the fire district is larger than the Tgwn, and the department receives mgney
from the county for a portion of the cost of operations.

Highway 70 Utility Relocation Fund - This capital poect fund is used to account for grant
funds that are restricted for a particular purpose.

Fire Substation Fund - This capital project fund is used to account for the construction of a
new fire substation.

The Town does not have any non-major governmental funds.

The Town reports the following major enterprise funds:

Utility Fund - This fund is used to account for the Town's water and sewer operations.

Capital Ploject Fund - These funds are used to account for specific capital projects and related
loan activity.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountin0

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes. all funds of the Town are maintained during
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-
exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants and donations is recorded in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
I{OTES TO TIIE FII{ANCIAI STATEMEilTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

i{OTE 1 SUMI'IARY OF SIGIIIFICAI{T ACCOUT{TIIIG POLICIES (continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountino (continued)

Amounts reported as program revenues include l) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided,2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Town enterprise funds are charges to cust0mers for sales and
services. The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recegnized as expenditures tg
the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under installment loan
agreements and capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end,
except for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and
are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.
Also, as of lanuaty l, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of
property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the
law, Carteret County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered
motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the
Town of Beaufort. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are
due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are
applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due. Therefore. the Town's vehicle taxes for
vehigles r€giStered in Carteret County from March 2012 through February 2013 apply to the fiscal
year ended lune 30, 2013. Uncollected vehicle taxes that were billed during this period are
shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of
resources.



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE‖ [NTS
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

NOTE r SUMHARY OF SIGNIFICAI{T ACCOUT{TII{G POLICIES (continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountino (continued)

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental reyenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, collected
and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Under the terms of grant agreements,
revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms
of Orant agreements, the Town funds certain proErams by a combination 0f specific cost-
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance
the program. It is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
proqrams, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

D, tsudqetarv Data

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual
budget is adopted for the General. Special Revenue, and Enterprise Funds. All annual
appropriations lapse at the fiscal year end. Project ordinances are adopted for the Highway 70
Utility Relocation Capital Project Fund, Fire Substation Capital Project Fund and the Enterprise
Capital Project Funds. The enterprise fund projects are consolidated with their respective
operating fund for reporting purposes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis
of accounting.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually
budgeted funds and at the project level for the multi-year funds. Amendments are required for
any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by
more than $25,000. All amendments must be approved by the governing board. The budget
ordinance must be adopted by July I of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an
interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

E. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Eouity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated olficial depositories and are secured
as required by State law [G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository,
any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the
Town may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money
market accounts. and certificates of deposit.
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NOTE■  SuMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTINc POLICIES(continued)

E  Assets.Liabilities and Fund Eouitv(continued)

2

3

4

5

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Towrr to invest in oblioations of the United States or
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States or
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies;
certain high quality issues of cammercial paper and bankers' acceptances and the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The Town's investments are reported at fair
value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT-Cash Portfolio. a
SEc-reoistered (2a-7) money mrrket mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the
NCCMT'S share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value.

Cash and Cash Eou iva lents

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursements and investment and to
maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand
deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

The impact fees collected for the water and sewer funds are classified as restricted assets for
the enterprise fund because their use is completely restricted to the purpose for which the
funds were originally collected. Powell Bill Funds are also classified as restricted cash
because it can only be expended for the purposes of maintaining, repairing, constructing,
reconstructing 0r widenin0 of local streets per G.S. 135-41.1 through 135-41.4. In addition,
the portion of funds held for the future construction of a fire station is reported as restricted
assets. The Highway 70 Utility Relocation project has an overdrawn restricted cash balance
at year end, as these funds may only be used for the construction progress.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)]. the Town levies ad valorem
taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The
taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the
following lanuary 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2011.

Allowance for Doubtful Accou nts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of
receivables that were written off in prior years.
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NOTE l  SU‖‖ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOuNTING POLECIES(continued)

6. Caoital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than a certain cost and en estimated useful life in excess of two years. The minimum
capitalization cost is $5,000. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or
estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at
the date of donation. General infrastructure assets acquired after July 1, 2003, consist of the
road network and drainage system assets that were acquired or that received substantial
improvements subsequent to July l, 1980, and are reported at estimated historieal cost using
deflated replacement cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend assets'lives are not capitalized.

All other capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Asset Class
Estlmated
Useful Lives

5-7

7‐ 10
7-10
40
20-40

7.

Computer equipment
Vehicles
Equipment and fixtures
Buildings
Infrastructure

Deferred outflows/infl ows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The
Town has no items that meet this criterion. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition 0f net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
revenue until then. The Town has two items that meet this crlterion for this category -
prepaid revenues and property taxes receivable.

8. Long-termOblioations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund fanancial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities. business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method that
approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs, except for prepaid insurance costs, are
expensed in the reporting period in which they incurred. Prepaid insurance costs are
expensed over the life of the debt.
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(continued)

8. Lono-term Obligations (continued)

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town's government-
wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liabillty for compensated absences and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-
in, flrst-out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is
estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the
govern ment-wide fi nancial statements.

The Tgwn's sick leave pglicy pror'Oa fgr an unlimited accumulatign of earned sick leave. Sick
leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be
used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the
Town does not have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no
accrual for sick leave has been made.

10. Net Position/Fund Balances

Net Position

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as
net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position
repr$ents constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, Erantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state
statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of three
classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance
can be spent.
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i{OTE I SUM}IAR.Y Or SIGIIIFICAIIT ACCOUI{TIIIG POTICIES (continued)

10. Net PositioniFund Balances (continued)

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Reserved for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted
by State Statue [G.S. r59-8(a)].

Restricted for Streets - Powell Bill portion of fund balance that is restricted by
revenue sources for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount
represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Bill funds.

Assigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that Town of Beaufort intends to use for
specific purposes.

Public Safety - portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Board for
public safety needs.

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed 0r assigned t0 specific purposes or other funds.

T{OTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIATICE AilD ACCOUI{TABILITY

1. Excess of Expenditures over Approoriations

For the fiscal year ended lune 30, 2013, the expenditures made in the Town's Fire District Fund
exceeded the authorized appropriations made by the goyerning board for public safety by $361,229,
The Board adopted a resolution approving the installment purchase agreement and capital outlay,
but failed to adopt a budget amendment. Management and the Board will more closely review the
budget reports to ensure compliance in future years.

NOTE 3 DETAIL IiIOTES ON ALL FUI{DS

A. Assets

1. Deposits

All the deposits 0f the Town are either insured or collateralized using the Pooling Method.
Under this method, which is a collateral pool. all uninsured deposits are collateralized with
securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the
State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered
to be held by the Town's agents in their name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based
on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current
balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the
State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.
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NOTE 3 DETAIL ilOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. Assets (continued )

l. Depesits (cantinued)

The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the Town or with the escrow
agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the
Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk
may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina
enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public
deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit
risk for deposits and relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum
capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance.
The Town complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories
and verifying that deposits are properly secured.

At June 30, 2013, the Town's deposits had a carrying amount of $2,740,986 and a bank
balance of $2,5t2,107, Of the bank balance, $750,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance and the remainder was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. At
June 30, 2013, the Town's petty cash fund totaled $400.

2. Investments

At lune 30, 20f3, the Town had 93,938,702 invested with the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust's Cash Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and
Poor's. The Town has no policy regarding credit risk.

3. Receivables - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position for the year
ended June 30, 20f3 are net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts:

General Fund:
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable

Total
Enterprise Funds

Total

$     13,023
4′840
22′ 863
55.175

」     78_038
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NOTE 3  DETAIL‖ OTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

A. Assets(continued)

4. CaDita:AssetS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Bcginning
Balances      lncreases     Decreases

Governmental activities :

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress
Land

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment & fixtures
Vehicles
Buildings & improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation :

Equipment & fixtures
Vehicles
Buildings & improvements
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

$  114′ 323     $  216′ 094
1.461.005              -

1.575,328        216.094

$ 124′ 273

124,273

259′ 369
135′ 075
7′ 376

33′ 189
19′033

$      ‐

Transfer
Ending
Balances

$  206′ 144
1,461″ 005

1,667.149

744′ 879
2′ 499′ 092
1′ 431′ 302
1.119,852

5,795,125

588′ 019
1′ 736′ 702
454′ 283
208,751
2.987.755

…2:007JQ

S4.474.519

General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Total

401.320    52.222

232′ 519         ‐
120′ 291    33′ 189
2′ 113     3′ 80フ

354,923 36.996

$   6′ 897  $ 15,226

$      43′ 170

115′ 104
76′ 755
39.265

S     274.294

960′ 802
2′ 238′ 614
1′ 419′ 645
885,895

5,504,956

777′ 686
1′ 674′ 814
411′ 588
16フ,300
3.031,388

43′446
362′ 364

233.957

639.767

42′852
148′990
41′001
41,451
274.294

$  3651473
丁otai capital assets being depreciated′

net                               2,473=568

6overnmental activities capital assets″
34.158.146

Depreciation expense was charged to the 9overnmental functions as fo:lows:
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‖OTE 3  DETAlL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

A Assets(conunued)

4.  CaDital Assets(continued)

Beginning
Balances

Ending
Decreases IIangEI Balances

Business-type actiYities:
Utility Fund:
Capitll assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress
Land

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital asseti being dePreciated:
Equipment & fixtures
Vehicles
Buildings & improvements
Plant & collection system
Plant & distribution system

Total capital assets bein0 depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Equipment & fixtures
Vehicles
Buildings & improvements
Plant & collection system
Plant & distribution system

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Utility Fund c.pital a$€ts, net

$  880,844
1.063.615

砕

785,913
321′ 930
1′ 139,749
31,032′917
2.834.489

36.114.998

589′ 688
242′ 062
880′ 515
2,971,069
1228.430
5.911.764

30_203234

-4‐ 63

Increases

, 914,199

914.199

s l,025,548  5 ,  769′ 495
1´ 063.615
1´833.110

635′ 477
271,611
1′ 139,749
31,013′884
3.860.037

36.920.758

501′ 369
209′ 302
909′ 009
3′ 728′ 526
1269.463

1.025.548

33,189)

19′ 033)
1025.548
1.025´ 548

52,650
17′ 558
28′ 494
761,264
41′033
900999

‐      150′ 436
‐       17′ 130

167.566

140′ 969
17,129

2013.  At year‐ end′

Soent‐ to‐date

s      769′ 495
206′ 144

」      975639

158.098  (  36.996)  6′ 617′ 669

…

…

(   52.222)

( 33,189)

(   3,80フ )

Construction commitments

The Town has active construction projects as of June
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Proiect

Water prolects
Fire Substation

TOtal

30′ the 9overnrnentrs

Remaining
Commltment

s      250′ 505
310.588

1      561_093
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NOTE 3 DETAIT NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

B. Liabilities

1. Pension Plan and Post-Employment Obligations
(a) Local Governmental Emplovees' Retirement System (continued)
Plan Description - The Town of Beaufort contributes to the statewide Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and
tlisability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.
The LGERS in included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of
North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 60lo of their annual covered salary.
The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the Town, the
current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers
iS 6.740/o and 6.770/o respectively, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements
of members and the Town of Beaufort are established and may be amended by the NC
General Assembly.

The Town's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 20t2, and 2011, were
$339,107, $320,808, and $295,816, respectively. The contributions made by the Town
equaled the required contributions for each year.

(b) Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description - The Town of Beaufort administers a public employee retirement system
(the "Separation Allowance"), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to the Town's qualified sworn law enforcement officers. The Separation
Allowance is equal to .850/o of the annual equivalent 0f the base rate of compensation most
recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits
are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by
the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance.
At December 31, 2012, the Separation Allowance membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits
Terminated plan members entitled to

but not yet receiving benefits
Active plan members

Total

A separate report was not issued for the plan.

1;
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‖OTE 3  DETAIL‖ OTES ON ALL FuNDS(continued)

B  Liab‖ ities(COntinued)

1. Pension Plan Oblioations (continued)
(b) Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance (continued)

Summary of Sionificant Accountino Policies
Basis of Accounting - The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you
go basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

MethQd USed to Value Investments - No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Contributions
The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits
and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations
made in the General Fund operating budget. The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan
is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no
contributions made by employees.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the
December 3t,2012 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.
The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.0olo investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 4.25-7.850/o per year. Both (a) and (b)
included an inflation component of 3.00/0. The assumptions did not include post-employment
increases.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Oblioation
The Town's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for
the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual pension cost

Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year

Net pension obligation, end of year

S        24′ 550

5′ 340

(          6.646)

23′244

23,244

106.803

S       130_047
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NOTE 3  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

B  Liabi!ities(continued)

l  Pension Plan Oblications(cOntinued)

`〃

ι∂″f"あr麒ご″ra協″な′sbθιわノSemratrar Иrra鷹∂17re(COnunued)

For Year Ended        Annual        Percentage of Annual
]une 30        Pension Cost        APC Contributed

$ 23′ 244

3 21,321

3 22′ 793

2013

2012

2011

％

％

％

０

　

０

０

Net Pension
Oblication

S 130′ 047

S 106′ 803

3  85′ 482

Funded Status and Fundino Prooress
As of December 37, 2072, the most recent actuarial date, the plan was not funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was
$f92,049. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$635,014, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 30.24o/o.

The Schedule 0f funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

(c) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan)r
a defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasure and a
Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers
employed by the Town. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State gf Ngrth Carglina. The State's CAFR includes
the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan
that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina, 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Article 12E of the G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each
month an amount equal to 5olo of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are
vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to
the plan. The Town has elected to contribute to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan
for general employees as well as law enforcement officers. Contributions for the year ended
lune 30, 2013 were $f58,382 which consisted of $132,662 from the Town and 925,720 from
the employees.
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NOTE 3  DETAIL■ OTES ON ALL Fu‖DS(continued)

B. Liabi!ities(contlnued)

1. Pension Plan Obligations (continued)
(d) Firemenb and Rescue Squad WorkerS Pension Fund
Plan Description - The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the Town of Beaufort,
to the Faremen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the
State of North Carolina. The fund provides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad
workers that have elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58
assigns the authority t0 establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's
CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail
Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 910 per month to the Fund. The
state, a non-employer contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The Town does not
contribute to the fund. Contribution requirements of the plan members and the State of
North Carolina are established and may be amended by the N.C. General Assembly.

(e) Other Post-Emolovment Benefits (OPEBI - Healthcare Benefits
Plan Description - Under the terms of a Town resolution, the Town administers a single-
employer defined benefit healthcare plan ('the Retiree Health plan"). The plan provides post-
employment healthcare benefits to retirees of the Town. provided they participate in the
North Carolina Local Governmental Employees'Retirement System (System) and have at least
twenty years of creditable service with the Town. The retiree pays the full cost of coverage
for these benefits through private insurers. The Town council may amend the beneiit
provisions. A separate report was not issued for the plan.

Members of the Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2012, the date of the latest
actuaria I valuation:

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits
Terminated plan members entitled to but not

yet receiving benefits
Active plan members

Total

Funding Policy - The retiree pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits
provided to qualified retirees under a Town resolution that can be amended by the Town
Council. The Town has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The current annual required contribution (ARC) rate is 0.29% of annual covered payroll. For
the current year, the Town contributed g0 or 0o/o of annual covered payroll. The Town
obtained healthcare coverage through private insurers. The Town's required contributions.
under a Town resolution, for both employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers represented 0olo of covered payroll. There were no contributions made
by employees. The Town's obligation to contribute to the Plan is established and may be
amended by the Town Board.

67
67
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NOTE 3  DETAlL NOTES ON ALL FU‖ DS(continued)

B  Liab‖ ities(COntinued)

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation

1. Pension Plan Oblioations (continued)
(e) Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) - Healthcare Benefits (continued)
Summary 0f Significant Accounting Policies - Postemployment expenditures are made from
the General Fund, which is maintaaned on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds
are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they
come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Oblagation - The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense) iS
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoirrg basis is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Town's annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town's net OPEB
obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Adjustment to annual required contribution ( f.332)

S         フ′461

1′394

7′ 523

7′523

34.850

3        42_373

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation. beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

The Town′ s annua1 0PEB cost′ the percentage of annua1 0PEB cost contributed to the plan′
and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30′ 2013 were as fo‖ ows:

For Vear Ended        Annual        Percentage of Annual       Net OPEB
]une 30         0PEB Cost      OPEB Cost Contributed      Obiioation

2013          5  7′ 523               0%               3  42′ 373

2012          5 10′ 509               0%               ,  34′ 850

2011      910′ 219        0%        s 24′ 341



Town of BeauFort′ North Carolina

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

‖OTE 3  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

B.  Liab‖ ities(COntinued)

t. Pension Plan Oblioations (continued)
(e) Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) - Healthcare Benefits (continued)
Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and thus,
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $68,147. The covered payroll (annual payroll
0f active employees c0vered by the plan) yyas $2,505,607, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 2.7o/o. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far
into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past exDectations and nev{ estimates are made abgut the future.
The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements. presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the aatuarial
value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net
of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term investment returns on the
employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation
date. and an annual medical cost trend increase of 8.50 to 5.oo percent annually. The
investment rate included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if
any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatality in the
market value of investments over a 5 year period. The UML is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at
December 3t, 2012 was 30 years.



Town of BeauFort,North Carolina

NOTES TO THE F:NANClAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended」 une 30′ 2013

NOT[3  DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

B Liabinties(cOntinued)

2 Other Emplovment Benefits
The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan
for members of the Local Government Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a
multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost
basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership in the System
at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to
beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months salary in a row during the 24
months prior to the employee's deathf but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less
than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The Town
has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death
Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other
benefit amount. The Town considers these contributions to be immaterial.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised of the followinq:

５^

4

Prepaid reYenues (General Fund)
Taxes receivable (General Fund), less penalties

Total

Risk Management
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related

Unavailable    Unearned
Revenue     Revenue

,       ‐   ,  5′ 984
140.815           ‐
S 140_81S   S  s_984

to tOns, theft of′ damage to′ and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Town participates in two self-funded risk-financing pools administered by the North Carolina
League of Municipalities. Through these pools, the Town obtains general liability and auto
liability coverage of 92 million per occurrence, property coverage up to 927,335,569, workers,
compensation coverage up to 91 million. The pools are reinsured through commercial
companies for single occurrence claims aoainst general liability, and auto liability in excess of
$1,000,000, and $1,00,000 for workers' compensation. The pools are reinsured for annual
employee health claims in excess of 9150,000.

The Town does carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance plan (NFIP).
Because the Town is in an area that State that has been mapped and designated an A area,
(an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal EmerEency Manaqement AEeney, the
Town is eligible to purchase coverage of 9500,000 per structure through the NFIp.

The Town carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year. and settled claims
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

∞
献

ｂｅｅｎ

ｈａｖｅ



Town of Beaufort′ North Caroiina

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

NOTE 3   DETAIL■ OTES ON ALL FUNDS(continued)

B  Liabilities(continued)

5.

6

4 Risk Manaoement (continued)
In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the Tov{n's employees whg have access to $100 or more at
any given time of the Town's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety
bond. The finance officer and tax collector are individually bonded for $100,000 each. The
remaining employees who have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for
$200,000.

Claims. ludoments an.d. Contingent Liabilities
At lune 30, 2013, the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the
Town's management and the Town attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the Town's financial position.

L0ng-Term Obligations (continued)
(a) Installment Purchase (continued)
In July 2008, the Town entered into an installment loan agreement for the purchase of a pumper
truck. Annual debt payments are accounted for in the Fire Department Fund. The agreement
requires ten semi-annual payments of $32,513 each, including principal and interest at 3.12% per
annum.

In December 2005, the Town signed a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water
Revolving loan for the cedar Street sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The agreement calls for
20 annual payments of principal in the amount of 930,115 each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of
interest at 2.205olo per annum.

In April 2006, the Town sioned a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving
loan for the Sewer Force Main Proiect. The loan requires annual principal payments of g29,628
each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of interest at 2.265% per annum.

In September 2007, the Town signed a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water
Revolving loan for the waste Water Treatment Plant Project. The loan requires annual principal
payments of $277,766 each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of interest at 2.26SVo per annum.

In September 2008, the Town signed a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water
Revolving Loan for the well Proiect. The loan requires annual principal payments of 950,560
each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of interest at 2.48% per annum.

In March 2008, the Town signed a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving
loan for the Waste Water Treatment Plant Project. The loan requires annual principal payments of
$692,017 each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of interest at 2.10,6 per annum.

In February 2010, the Town entered into an installment loan agreement for the purchase of land.
The agreement was refinanced in luly 2011. The refinance agreement requires 6 semi-annual
payments of $57,438 each, including principal and interest at 2.92% per annum.

In June 2011, the Town entered into an installment loan agreement for the purchase and
renovation of a new town hall. The agreement requires annual principal payments of 9100,000
each, plus 30 semi-annual payments of interest at 2.95Vo per annum.



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended]une 30′ 2013

NOTE 3  DETAlL‖ OTES ON ALL Fu‖DS(continued)

B. Liabilities(continued)

2014
2015
2016
201フ

2018
Subsequent Five years
Subsequent Five years

Subsequent five years

present value of the

minimum lease payments

Totai interest payments

At」 une 30,2013,the Town of Beaufort had a

6. Lono-TermOblioations (continued)
In February 2012, the Town entered into an installment loan agreement for the purchase of a
waste compactor truck. The agreement calls for quarterly payments of $7,535 each, including
principal and interest at 2.62oh per annum.

In October 2012. the Town entered into an installment loan agreement for the purchase gf a
pumper truck. The agreement calls for annual payments of $78,017 each, including principal and
interest at 2.7596 per annum.

In September 2011, the Town signed a promissory note to the North Carolina Clean Water
R.evolving loan for the Sycamore drive water proiect. The agreement calls for lgan funding up to
$935,000. As of June 30, 2013, the Town had drawn down 9763.457. Upon completion, the loan
will require annual principal payments of $46,750 each, plus 40 semi-annual payments of interest
at 2.455o/o per annum.

The future minimum payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2013, including
$325,533 of interest in the governmental activities and 93,217,950 of interest in business-type
activities are as follows:

Year Endino June 30
Governmental Activities   Business― tvDe Activities
Princloal    lnterest    Princlpal    lnterest

s  227′ 731 s   52′ 762 11′ 190′ 876 s  452′ 148
198′ 321
200′ 996
196′ 208
175′ 928
500′ 000
400,000

46′ 710   1,136,697    348,079
41,085   1,080,085    323′ 839
35′ 388   1,080′ 085
30,113   1′ 080′ 085

300′ 427
277′ 014

95,875   5′ 400′ 425   1,033′ 878
23′ 600   5,340,196    449,224

1,708.275     33,341

■1 禽001n4            ■lA n16 7'4

■  1,5S■ ■            ■1,179ヽ 0

1egal debt mar9in oF$43,263,110.



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

‖OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

NOTE 3  DETAIL‖ OTES ON ALL FU‖DS(continued)

B.  Liabilities(continued)

6. Lono―Term Ob‖oations(cOnunued)

′り Cha″Ces ra lo"σ
‐lθ′
"Oblicaム

iO″s

Governmental activities:
Compensated absences
Installment loans
Other post-employment benefits

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities

BUSiness-type activities:
Compensated absences
Installment loans
Other post-employment benefi ts

Business-type activities
long-term liabilities

Be9inning

Balance     lncreases

4   199′ 555 S         ‐
1,728′ 769     359′ 858
27.945       6.017

( 1 056,60 生   365_875

,    33′ 815 s        ―
18,153′ 442    1′ 000′433
6.906       1.505

tlR_10416R41001918

ζ   211.455 S 2110′ 689 3   405′ 274

Decreases

s    22,012
189,443

1     6′369
1′ 137′ 151

Ending

Balance

s   177′543
1,899′ 184
33.962

s    27′446
18,016′ 724
8.411

Current
Portion of

Balance

s   177′ 543
227,731

$    27′ 446
1′ 190′876

S l_143´ 520 1lR 057 581 1 1 ,lR R7,

7. Interfund Balances and Transfers
Transfers to/from other funds for the year ended June 30, 20f3 were comprised of:

Transfer from General Fund to Fire District Fund
for the Town's portion 0f Fire District expenditures S    584.000

8. Prior Period Adiustment
During the fiscal year ended lune 30, 2013, the Town determined certain cost associated with
a joint utility project was capitalized in error. These amounts were reimbursed by the North
Carolina Department of Transportation and should not have been capitalized. Therefore, an
adjustment to beginning net position for the governmental activities has been recorded to
account for those items. The net effect of which decreased net position by $109,250 for the
governmental activities.



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
I{OTES TO THE FIilA]ICIAL STATEMEI{TS

For the Year Ended lune 30, 2013

]{OTE 4 FUND BALAT{CE

The following schedule provides management and citizens y{ith information an the portion of General

Fund balance that is available for appropriation:

Total fund balance - General Fund
Less:
Stabilization by State Statute
Streets - Powell Bill

Remaining Fund Balance

$ 2,s01,137

384,140
s76.099

{__-1-540-898

NOTE 5 SUMMARY DISCTOSURE OF SIG]IIFICAIIT COMI{ITMEIITS AND COi{TIIIGENGIES

Federal and State Assisted Programs
The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these
grants may occur and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under
the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund 0f orant moneys t0 the grantor
agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies.

ilOTE 6 CHAI.IGE II{ ACCOUilTII{G PRIIICIPTE/R.ESTA?EMEiIT

The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and
Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2013. In accordance with GASB Statement 63, the Statement of Net Assets has been replaced with
the Statement of Net Position. Items on the Statement 0f Net Position are now classified into Assets,
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position.
Additionally, GASB Statement 65 requires that deferred costs from the refunding of debt, which were
previously deferred and amortized, be presented as deferred outflows of resources.



REQUIRED SUPPTEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles.

' Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers'Special Separation Allowance.

' Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance.

' Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan.

. Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Retiree Health Plan.



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actllarial

Valuation
Date

12/31/06
12/31/07
12/31/08
12ノ 31ノ 09

12ノ 31ノ 10
12/31/11
12/31/12

Actuaraal
V.lue of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued (AAL)
prOieCted unit

Credit

(b)

$   70,381
83,395
101′ 474
165,620

160′ 774
182′ 154
192′ 049

unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b‐a)

,  70,381
83,395
101,474
165,620

160,774
182′ 154
192′ 049

Funded
Ratio

(aノ b)

Percentage
Contributed

Covered
Pavroll

(C)

S  559,924
578′ 743
631,673
683′ 977
653,278
662′ 670
635,014

UAAL as a O/●
of Covered
Pavr● :l

(b― aノ C)

1257%
144196
1606%
24210/0

24610/1
27490/●

30240/o

協
協
賜
』
』
』
慨

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended
]une 30

2007
2008
20C19

2010
2011
2012
2013

Annual Required
Contrabution

０

０

０

０

０

０

０

＄ ％

％

％

％

％

％

％

０

０

０

０

０

０

０

40



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
Retiree tlealth Plan

Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuadal
Actuarial Accrued (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a o/o

Actuarial Value of Proiected Unlt AAL Funded Covered of Coyerad
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratao Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b - a/c)

r2l3tlr2 - $68,147 $68,147 0oi6 $2,505,607 2.7o/o

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
lune 3O Contribution Contributed

2013 $0 Oo/o



GENERAL FUND

The Ceneral Fund aCcounts for resources traditlona‖ y associated with 9overnment that are associated

with government that are not required lega‖ yo「 by sound Financial management tO be accounted for
in other Funds



Town of Beaufort,North Caroiina
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES′ EXPENDETURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES― BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FU‖ D
For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes:

Current year
Prior years
Penalties and interest

Total

Other taxes & licenses:
ABC net revenues
Local option sales tax
Privilege licenses

Total

Unrestricted intergovernmental :

Payments in lieu of tax
Beer and wine tax
utilities franchise tax

Total

R.estricted intergovernmental :

Powell Bill
Other grants

Total

Permits and fees:
Building permits
Court and parking fees
Garbage/recycle fees

Total

Sales and service:
Rents
Sales of cemetery lots

Total

Variance
Favorabie

Budcet       Actual    (unfavOrable〕

牟   2′ 280′268
86′ 692
19.130

2′373.676       2.386.090          12.414

801,286

70,867
730′759
38.484

840.110 38.824

284.797

32′898
16′489
255.316
304.703

120′762
930
121.692

86′461
3′292
303.137

19.906

121′ 692

387.746         392,890          5.144

211,415
3.000

214.415         214,415



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDULE OF REVE‖ UES′ EXPENDITURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES‐ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended]une 30,2013

(continued〕

Variance
Favorable

BudOet          Actual       `unfavorableヽ

7′000           3.293  (        3.707)
Investment earningsi

Interest

Other revenues:
Administrative expense

Reimbursement from Water/Sewer Funds
Private donations
Insurance proceeds
Miscellaneous

Total

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government:

Governing board:
Governing board fees
Professional fees
Other expenditures

Total

Administration:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Finance:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Facilities maintenance:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Total general government

Public safety:
Police:

Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

142′776
20′000
14′888
6.221

183.080        183.885           805

4.373′692       4.447.078         73.386

121.132

407′ 202

359.091

16′ 793
51,298
46.935
115′ 026

284′ 140
121.606
405.746

275′406
80.177
355.583

99,131
146′ 530
49.502

6.106

1.456

3.508

303.921         295.163          8.758

1.191.346       1.171.518         19.828

916′ 035
186.905

1.129.448       1.102.940         26.508



Town of Beaufort′ North Caroiina

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES′ EXPENDITURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES‐ 3UDGET AND ACTUAL

CEN[RAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30,2013

(cont:nuedヽ

Variance
Favorable

Budcet          Actual       `Unfavorableヽ
Planning and inspections:

Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures

Total

Total public safety

Public Y{orks:
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditures
Street lights
Street maintenance
Capital outlay

Total public works

Environmental protection:
Sanitation:

Salaries and benefits
6arbage/trash collection

Tota I environmental protection

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total debt service

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer to Fire Fund
Transfer to Fire Substation Project

Total other financing sources (uses)

801.391 26′ 681

328.956

176,110
147.603
323.713

126′886
46.283

5.243

173.170        173.169             1

3′849.692       3′ 769.422         80.270

524.000         677.656        153′ 656

225′381

1.354.829

186′ 436
36.936
223.372

1.326.312

299′862
145′ 770
109,642
119′938
99.498
774,710

2.009

28.517

(     584′000)

(     142′ 113)

(     726′ 113)

(      584′ 000)

(      584.000)

142.113

(      142.113)



Town of Beaufort′ North Caroiina

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES′ EXPEHDITURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES‐ BUDGFr AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended]une 30′ 2013

rcOntinued、

Fund balance appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Var,ance

Favorable
Budoet          Actual       `Unfavorableヽ

202.113              ‐  (     202.113)

上           -          93′ 656   生      93.656

2.407.481

-Q―



FIRE DISTRICT FUND

A Special Revenue Fund used to account for specific revenue sources(other than expendable
trusts or major capltal proJects)that are legally restncted tO expendltures for specined purposes

F/re a″″Resc●e District― This Fund accOunts for the operations oF the Beaufort Fire District.



Town of BeauFort′ North Caro‖ na

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES′ EXPENDITURES′ AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES… 8UDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVE‖ UE FUND‐ FIRE DISTRICT
FOr the Vear Ended〕 une 30,2013

REVE]TUES
Ad valorem taxes
Sales tax
G ra nts
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPEIiIDITURES
Salaries and benefits
Operating expenditure
Capital outlay

Total

Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FIlIAilCITG SOURCES
Loan proceeds
Transfer to capital project
Transfer from General Fund
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

Budoet

$

410′ 094

Actuai

S     322,385
78′000
14′279
422
2.430

417′ 516

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$

7.422

919.089

62′ 560
2′467
65.027

984.116

(     574′ 022)

775,795
128,081

376,444
1.280.320

62′ 559
2.466
65.025

1,345′ 345

(     927.829)

(    361.231)

1

1

2

(     361.229)

(     353.807)

(        9,978)
584.000
574′022

S    ‐

359′858

584.000
943′ 858

16′029

89=334

S     105.363

359′858
9,978

369,836

S      16.029



Town of Beaufortr North Carolina

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND′ HIGHWAY 70 UTILETY RELOCAT10N
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES′ EXPENDETURES AND
CHANGES IN FU‖ D BALANCE‐ BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From lnception and For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

REVENUES
State grants

EXPENDETURES
Engineering

Construction

Actual Variance

Project        Prior       Current      Total to      Positive
Authorization     Year        Year        Date      fNeaative〕

島 3,858′ 539 $ 2.614′ 808 S l′ 277′ 566 S3′892,374  3    33,835

707′ 000     381′ 636     104′ 019     485′ 655     221′ 345

3,403′ 000    2″ 233,172    1′ 126′260    3″ 359″432      43′ 568

Total expenditures             4,110,000    2′614,808    1.230.279    3.845′ 087     264′ 913

Revenues under expenditures    (    251,461)          -      47′ 287      4フ ,287     298′748

0THER FINANCINC SOURCES
Transfer from Enterprise Fund        251′ 461            -            ‐           ‐ (   251,461)

Revenues and other financing
OVer(under)expenditures    虫         ― 生         -      47′ 287 生    4フ .287 生    4フ .287

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending 生   4フ ″287



Town of BeauFort′ North Carolina

CAPITAL PRO]ECTS FUND′ FIRE SuBSTAT10N PRODECT
SCHEDULE OF R[VENUES′ EXPENDlTURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE― BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From inception and For the Year Ended]une 30′ 2013

Prolect

Authorization

S   264.641

40′ 000

463′ 202
13.530

516.732

(    252′091)

109′978
142,113
252.091

Prior
Year

$-

Current
Year

S   264′ 461

34′404

163,510
8.230

Total to

Date

S   264.461

34′404

163′ 510
8.230

Variance
Positive

(Neo5tiveヽ

(3     180)

5′ 596

299′692
5.300

Actual

REVEiIUES
County funds

EXPEl{DITURES
Engineering

Construction
Administration

Total expenditures

R.evenues under expenditur€S

Other financing sources
Transfer from Fire Fund
Transfer from General Fund

Total other financing

Revenues and other financing
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

S   ― S   ―

206.144     206.144     310′ 588

58.317      58.317     310.408

(   109′ 978)

(     142.113)

(_____塑≧5E≧
`≦
≧9EL)

58′317 3    58317  3   58.317

3   58317



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business where the intent of the governing board is that costs of providing goods and services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed and recovered primarily through user charges.

Utility fund -fhis fund account for the Town's water and sewer operations.

Capital Project Funds -These funds account for the Town's water and sewer capital project activities.



Town of BeauFort′ North CarO‖ na

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDETURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL‐ (Non‐ GAAP〕

UTILITY FUND
For the Year Ended]une 30,2013

REVElIUES
Operatinq revenues:

Sewer service charges
Water service charges
Water and sewer tap fees
Water connection fees

Total

Non-operating revenues:
Interest earned on investments
Impact fees
Other non-operating revenues

Total

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Water treatment and distribution:

Salaries and benefits
Administrative expense
Contract services
Insura nce
Postage
Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies and materials
Telephone and utilities
Vehicle expenses
County water purchase
Other

Tota I

Waste Water collection and treatment:
Salaries and benefits
Administrative expense
Contract services
Insu rance
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies and materials
Telephone and utilities
Vehicle expense
Other

Total

Var!ance
Favorabie

BudOet       Actual    (Unfavorableヽ

1   2′ 130′480
823′425
14′ 125
19,841

2.964.250       2.987.871         23.621

89,500

7′996
25′650
87.335

12019饉 31,481

3.053.750       3.108′ 852         55.102

581.127

187′ 990
71,388
56′003
15′41o
13′631
12′ 193
18′734
79′222
34′667
14′938
40′ 929
9′ 724
554′829

473′ 237
71′388
59′ 564
75,813
64′623
36′418
192,412
35′495
21.859

26.298

1′ 086′ 125       1.030.809         55.316



Town of Beaufo「 t,North Caro:ina
SCHEDuLE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
EUDGET AND ACTUAL・ (■on・GAAP〕

U71LETY FUND
For the Year Ended]une 30,2013

(continued)
Variance

FaVOrable

Budcet          Actual       fUnfavorableヽ
Debt service:

Princ ipa I

I nterest
Total

Total expenditures

R.evenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINAT{CING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer to capital project

Fund balance appropriated

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expend itu res and other uses

Reconciliation of modified accrual
basis to full accrual basis:

Reconciling items:
Decrease in accrued vacation
Transfer to capital projects
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Increase in accrued OPEB liability
Debt principal
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Book value of assets transferred
Depreciation

Total reconciling items

Change in net position

1,137,151

374.997
1′ 512.148

3′ 179′400

(      15′ 000)

140,650

S    ―

(      14′ 340)

(     61′511)

660

(     140′ 650)

(3      61.511)

1′ 137′ 151              ^
433.234   (      58.237ヽ
1.570.385   (      58.237)

3.156′023         23.377

(     125.650) (      47.171)        78479

6′369
14′340

(      10′ 515)

(       1′ 505)
1,137′ 151

(      9,468)
(      15,226)
(    900.999)
220.147

S    158.636



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL‐ (Non‐GAAP)
CAPITAL PRO]ECT FUND
WELL 2 PRO]ECT

From lnception and for the Year Ended June 30,2013

Actual
Project Prior Current

Authorization Year Year
Total to      Positive

Date      rNeqative)

Variance

REVENUES
proceeds from NC Dept.of

Environment&Natural
Resources Loan

EXPENDITURES
Administration

Engineering

Construction

Total expenditures

10′000          41
750′ 000     533′ 559
385′000     274.308

つ      807.908

S l.145.000 S   774.232 S   236.976 S 1011.208 (S   133.792)

117′ 156
100.484

つ

41

650′715
374.792

1.025.548

9,959
99′ 285
10.208

119′452

Revenues over(under)expenditures         ―(     33.676)     19.336 (    14′ 340)(    14′ 340)

OT]IER FIIIANCI]IG SOURCES
Transfer from Utility Fund

Total revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures

14.340      14.340      14′ 340

S         ―(S    33.676)S    33_676 S        ―  S         ‐



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDrruRES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL‐ (Non‐GAAP)
CAPITAL PRO]ECT FUND

SYCAMORE WELLHEAD&RAW WATER MAIN PRO]ECT
From lnception and for the Year Ended」 une 30′ 2013

ProJect    P面 or
Autho「 12atiOn     Year

Current Total to
Year Date

Variance
POSitive

rNecative〕

REVE]IUES
Proceeds from NC Dept. of

Environment & Natural
Resources Loan

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Engineering & construction
Property acquisition

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expenditures

OTHER FINAT{CIIIG SOURCES
Transfer from Utility Fund

Total revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures

S   935,000 S         ― S   763.457 3   763.457 (S   171.543)

41′ 700
968,224
10.076

1.020.000

(     85′ 000)

85′000

10′076
62′ 860

72.936

(    72′ 936)

8′624
677′859
10.076

696.559

66.898

18′ 700
740′719
10.076

769′495

(    6′ 038)

23′000
227′505

250.505

(    78.962)

(    85.000)

3   -(ζ  72_93o虫  66_898(ζ  6_038(ζ   6033



OTHER SCHEDULES

S(hedule of Ad Va orem Taxes R● ceivable

Analysis oF current Tax Levy― Town‐wide



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
GENERAL FUND
June 30′ 2013

Unco‖ ected
Balance                               Co‖ ections

Fiscal Year        」une 30.2012         Additions          and Credits

2012-2013
2011‐2012
2010-2011
2009-2010
2008‐2009
2007-2008
2006-2007
2005‐2006
2004-2005
2003‐2004
2002‐2003

78′424
43,312
17,200

8′868
1′442
5′644
2′051
2′852
994
3,985

S       164.772

2′280,268   $
56′285
21′641
8′ 596
3′764
609
4′ 562
73
73
401

Uncollected
Balance

Ju ne 30. 2013

85,879
22′ 139
29′813
8′604
5′ 104
867
1′082
1,978
2′779
593

158.838

(         18.023)

S       140_815

5     2′ 386′090

13′297
(         19.130)

S      2_380_257

‐   3     2,366,147   S

8′ 142

34

S      2.374.323
__ _3.985
■      2.380.257

Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net

Reconciliation with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund
Reconciling items:

Taxes written off
Penalties and interest

Net collections and credits



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY
TOWN‐WEDE LEVY

For the Year Ended June 30′ 2013

Total Lew

Town-Wide

Property
Excluding
Registered

Motor
Registered
Motorproperty

Va:uation

Total

Rate           Levv         Vehic:es        Vehicles

Original levy
Property taxed at

current rate
Property taxed at

prior rate
Penalty

Discoveries
Current year taxes

Abatements

Total property
valuation

Net levy

Uncollected taxes at
June 30, 2013

Current year's taxes
collected

Current levy collection
percentage

$  777′ 351′ 161

12′ 620′ 000

1′ 680′ 403

(     1,913.843)

S  ア89.737.721

1    2,202′ 470

1′981

$       19′ 585

32′812

０

　

　

６

３

　

　

２

2,332′ 055

32′ 812
1′981

5′ 041 5′ 041

(         5,742)(        5,742)

2′ 366′ 147 2′ 283′ 750 82′397

85.879 ________Z塑 艶QユQ         12.829

1____三L2豊国L26a S    2.210.700 3       69.568

96.37%     96.80%     84.43%



COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal
Control Over Compliance in Accordance with oMB CIRCULAR A-133 and the State Single Audit

Implementation Act

. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

. Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

. Corrective Action Plan

. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
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CPAS and Aclvisors

Report on Internal Control OvGr Financlal Repordng and on ComplianoE and
Other llatters Based on an Audit of Financaal Statements performcd.

ln Accordanc€ v,tt Goycmment AadltCng Sbrrdatds

To the Honorable Mayor and
Board of CommissioneB
Town of Beaufort, North Carolina

we have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united
States of Afilr}erica and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained il Gorcnmsrt
Auditing standards issued by the comptroller General of the united states, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund inforrnation of the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectiveh, comprise the Town of Beaufort, North carolina's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated November B, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Remrtino
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Beaufortt internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to det€rmine the eudit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiyeness of the Town of Beaufort, North carolina's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town,s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combinauon of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasgnable pgssibility t[31
a material misstatement of the entit/s financial statements v{ill not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely trasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of
rleficiencies, in internal contrgl that is less severe than a material weakness, yet imDortant
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that vyere not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identii/ any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. We did identiry certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be significant
deficiencies. [2013-1]
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Beaufort's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and Erant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective Of Our audit and, accordingly, we dO not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Town of Beaufort's Response to Findinos
The Town of Beaufort's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Town's response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we

express no opinion 0n it.

Puroose of this Reoort
This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 0n the effectiveness 0f
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

仇停 /場′社(
New Bern, North Carolina
November 8, 2013
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CPAS ard Aclvisors

RepOrt on Compliance with Requirelnenヽ Applicable to Each‖ aJo「
｀

Federal prOgram and internai Contr01 0ver Compllance in Accordance
wlth OMB Circular A‐ ■33 and the State Single Audit lmplementatlon Act

To the Honorab:e Mayor and
Board of Commissioners
Town of Beaufort′ North Caroiina

O●― 汁 ^n rnmハ
lianr● 仏 r Farh MaヽハrF●4●綸 :pr― nm

We have audited the Town of Beaufort, North Carolina′  comp:iance with the types of
compliance requirements d設 ‖bed in the ιttθ

`凛

リカr■・IJJ mmp:ian∝ Sぃ ょand the
■udit“,″rar rar 6ο

“

″記 ″larス udib鑢 ゎ 』b"缶 Ю■ina=issued by the Local Government
Commission′ that could have a direct and IItaterial efFect On each of the Town of Beaufort′
North Caromna、 maor federa:programs for the year ended June 30′ 2013.Town of Beaufort、
malor Federal programs are identined in the summary of auditorヽ resuits section of the
accompanying schedute oF indings and quesuoned costs.

Manacementt Resoonsibility
Management is responsib:e for comp:iance with the requirerrlents of iaws′  regulations′
contracts,and grants app:icable to its federal programs.

Our responsibility is to exprc an oplnion on compliance for each of the Town of Beaufortt
maor federal programs based on our audt Of the types of compliance requirements referred to

above. We conducted our audit of comp:iance in accordance with auditing standards genera‖ y
accepted ln the united states of Amencai the standards app:icabie to lnanchi lり dits
contained in 6b喀″肥 ″ょ′″ ″η′1贅ン励 Лdtt issued by the Comptro:ier Genera:of the United
States, and OMB Circular A‐ 133′ ′

“
J`じ af 5レ能り larar 6ο昭

",コ
睫勁毎  arP」 /Var2-PaFl

θ%′″″ 勧 島and the State Singie Audlt lmpieFlentation Act. Those standards,OMB Circular
A‐ 133, and the State Singie Audit lmpiementation Act require that we p!an and perForm the

audt to obtain reasonabie assurance about whethe"noncompliance w■ h the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materia! efFd on a
maor federa:program∝ curred.An aud■ includes examining′ on a test basis′ evidence about
Town of Beaufort's compliance with those requirements and perForming such other procedu「 es
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonab:e basis for our opinio■ on comp:iance for each
major federal program. However′ our audit does not provide a legai determination oF Town of
Beaufort、 comp!iance.

Opinion on Each Maior Federal Pro0ram
In our opinion, Town of Beaufort complied, in all material resp€cts, vvith the
comDliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Control Over Comoliance
Manasement of Town of Beaufort is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Town of Beaufort's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a

major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpgse gf expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB

Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal COntrOl Over gompliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a

type of complaance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a

type of a compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, gn a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in

internal control over cgmpliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over complianee that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

This purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of anternal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

cr* frw i J1^^)., r.r.(

New Bern, North Carolina
November 8, 2013



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDuLE OF EXPENDETURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30,2013

Federal

CFDA
Number

Federal
Direct and

Pass-through
Expenditures

State

ExDenditures
Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Prooram Title

Federal Grants (Cash Program)

Department of commerce;
Environmental Protection Aoencv
Office of Water:
Passed through NC Department of
Environment and Natural Resources:
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan

State Grants (Cash Programs)

NC Deoartment of Transoortation:
Powell bill

66.458 $ 914′ 199 S

119,938

s 914199-2・ e

2.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards includes the Federal and

ii;i" s;ri;Aivfty of the Town of Beaufort and is presented on the modified accrual basis of

;;;;;";fu. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
On4e-Circifrr A-!33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profits Organizations and the

5iate Singte Audit Implementation AGt, Theref9re, some amounts presented in this schedule mav

Oiffer frofi amounts presented in, or used in the preparation Of the basic financial statements'

Loans Outstandino
iffiTtr "f 

B"*fort had the following loan balances outstanding at lune 30, 2013' The loan

Uufrnai. outstanding are also included inlhe federal expenditures presented in this schedule'

Prooram Title

Drinking Water State Revolving Loan

Federal

CFDA
Number

66.458

Pass‐through
Grantor′s

Number

XXXX

Amount
Outstandinc

s   17′ 849′322



Town of Beaufort′ North Carolina

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUEST10‖ ED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2013

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

. Material weaknesses identified?

. Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

r Material weaknesses identified?

. Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses

Identification of maior federal programs:

CFDA Number Prooram Name

66.458 State Clean Water Revolving Loan

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and TyPe B Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

State Awards

None

Type of auditor,s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
rejorted in accoidance with Section sl0(a) of Circular A-133 

- 
yes x no

s      300000

Xno

_ none reported

Xno

Xno

X none reported

X  no

_ yes

X  yes

_ yes

_ yes

_ yes

_ yes

7'



Town of Beaufort, North Carolina
SCHEDULE OF FTNDTilGS AilD QUESTTONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section II. Financial Statement Findings

Significant Deficiency

2013-1 Excess of expenditures over appropriation

Criteria; The budget should be monitored on an ongoing and consistent basis to ensure all expenditures
are properly authorized and available.

Condition: During the course of our audit, we noted expenditures made in the Fire District Fund exceeded
authorized appropriations made by the governing board for public safety by $361,229.

Effect: The Fire District Fund budget was over expended for the year.

Cause: Proper budget management procedures were not followed.

Recommendation: The Town needs to closely review budget reports to ensure compliance.

Views of responsible officials; The Town agrees with this finding.

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported

Ecttqn IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported



Town of BeauFortr North Carolina

CORRECrIVE ACr=ON PLAN
For the Fiscal Year Ended]une 30′ 2013

Section II. Financia:Statement Findings

Significa nt Deficiency

2013-1 Excess of expenditures over appropriation

Name of contact person: Finance Officer

Corrective Action: Management controls are now in place to allow management to quickly respond to
chansinE variables by applying spending curtailments, or in the case of significant contingencies to
provide proper budget amendments. Currently, budgets and spending are being monitored on an ongoing
and timely basis.

Proposed Completion Date: The Town wil! implement the above procedures immediately.



Town of Beaufort,North Carouna
SuMMARY SCHEDuLE OF PR10R AuDlT F=leDINCS

Forthe Year Ended June 30′ 2013

20i2-1 Timely financial reporting

Status: Corrected

2012-2 Unbudgeted transfer

Status: Corrected

2012-3 lmproper property tax budget calculation

Status: Corrected

2012-4 Excess of expenditures over appropriation

status: fhis continues to be an ongoing issue for the Towh. See 2013-1.

2012-5 Form LGC-203 not fi,ed timely

Status: Corrected


